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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 
Notice is hereby given that the 76th Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of  
KOHINOOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED will be held on Tuesday, October 28, 2025 at 
11:00 A.M., at 06-Egerton Road, Opposite LDA Plaza, Lahore to transact the 
following business: - 
 

1. To confirm the minutes of the last Annual General Meeting held on 
October 28, 2024.  
 

2. To receive and adopt the Annual Audited Accounts for the year ended 
June 30, 2025 along with Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereon. 
 

3. To approve the payment of final cash dividend @ 7.5% i.e. Re. 0.75 per share 
as recommended by the Board of Directors. 

 

4. To appoint Auditors of the Company to hold office till the conclusion of next 
Annual General Meeting and to fix their remuneration. 

 

5. Any other business with the permission of the Chair. 
 
                        By Order of the Board 
 
 

                          MUHAMMAD ISLAM 

Lahore: October 07, 2025                         Company Secretary 
 
Notes: 

1. Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 
October 22, 2025 to October 28, 2025 (both days inclusive). Physical 
transfers/CDS transactions ID’s received in order at “Company Registrar 
office M/s Corplink (Pvt.) Limited”, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Model 
Town, Lahore on or before October 21, 2025 will be treated in time for 
entitlement of dividend. 

 
2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this Meeting may appoint another 

Member as his/her proxy. Proxies in order to be effective, must be received 

at 10-G, Mushtaq Ahmed Gurmani Road, Gulberg-II, Lahore, the Registered 
Office of the Company not later than forty-eight hours before the time for 
holding the meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed. 
 

3. Members whose shares are deposited with Central Depository System are 
requested to bring their original National Identity Cards or original Passports 
along with their Account Numbers in Central Depository System for 
attending the meeting. 

 
4. Members are requested to notify the Company change in their addresses, if any. 

 

5. TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORT 

In terms of approval of the shareholders of the Company in their Annual 
General Meeting held on October 27, 2023 and pursuant to SECP's 
Notification No. SRO 389(1)/2023 dated 21st March, 2023. The Annual 
Report for the financial year ended on 30th June, 2025 of the Company 
containing inter alia the audited financial statements, auditors' report, 
directors, and chairman's reports thereon may be viewed and downloaded by 
following QR code and weblink: 



 
 

Weblink QR Code 

https://kil.com.pk/investor_information.php  

 
 

The Annual Report has been emailed to those shareholders who have 
provided their valid email address to the Company. 

 

The shareholders who wish to receive a hard copy of the Annual Report may 

send to the Company Secretary/Share Registrar, the Standard Request 

Form available on the website of the Company www.kil.com.pk. The 

Company then will provide a free of Cost hard copy of Annual Report to the 

shareholders within one week of the request. 

6. SUBMISSION OF COPY OF CNIC/NTN DETAILS (MANDATORY) 

Pursuant to the directives of the Securities and Exchange Commission of 

Pakistan CNIC number of individuals is mandatorily required to be 

mentioned on dividend warrants and pursuant to the provisions of Finance 

Act 2018, the rate of deduction of income tax under section 150 of the 

Income Tax Ordinance 2001 from dividend payment have been revised as : 

for filers of Income Tax return 15.00% and Non-filers of Income Tax return 

30.00%. 

7. PAYMENT OF CASH DIVIDEND ELECTRONICALLY 

As per provision of Section 242 of Companies Act, 2017 any dividend 

payable in cash shall only be paid through electronic mode directly in to the 

bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. The shareholders are 

requested to provide their folio number, name and details of bank account 

consisting of bank name, branch name, branch code, Account number, Title 

of Account and IBAN in which they desire their dividend to be credited, 

failing which the Company will be unable to pay the dividend through any 

other mode. Standard request form has also been placed on website of the 

Company. The members are requested to send the information on the same 

to our share’s registrar (M/s Corplink Private Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, 

Commercial, Model Town, Lahore.) at the earliest possible.  

In case shares are held in CDC then the form must be submitted directly to 

shareholder’s broker/participant/CDC Investor account services. 

8. ZAKAT DECLARATIONS (CZ-50) 
 

The Zakat will be deducted from the dividends at source at the rate of 2.5% 

of the paid-up value of the shares (Rs. 10/- each) under Zakat and Ushr 

Laws and will be deposited within the prescribed period with the relevant 

authority, Please submit your Zakat Declarations under Zakat and Ushr 

Ordinance, 1980 & Rule 4 of Zakat (Deduction & Refund) Rules, 1981 CZ-50 

Form, in case you want to claim exemption, with your brokers or the Central 

Depository Company Ltd. (in case the shares are held in Investor Account 

http://www.kil.com.pk/


Services on the CDC) or to our Registrars, M/s Corplink Private Limited, 1-

K, Commercial Model Town, Lahore (in case the shares are held in paper 

certificate form). The shareholders while sending the Zakat Declarations, as 

the case may be must quote company name and respective folio numbers. 

9. Replacement Of Physical Shares Into CDC Account 
 

Members, who hold physical shares, are advised to convert their shares into 
electronic form in terms of section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017. 
 

10. Participation in the AGM through Video link Facility    
 

The SECP through its Circular No. 4 dated February 15, 2021 & Circular No. 
6 dated March 03, 2021 has directed listed companies to arrange 

participation of shareholders in Annual General Meeting through Video Link 
Facility in addition to allowing physical attendance by the members. The 
members who are willing to attend and participate in the AGM can do so 
through video-link via smartphones, computers, tablets, etc. To attend the 
AGM through video-link, members are requested to get their following 
particulars registered by sending an email or WhatsApp at the 
number/address given below, at least 48 hours before the time of the AGM, 
and download video-link from https//zoom.us/download. 

 

 
Name 
 

 
Folio/CDS Account No. 

 
CNIC No 

 
Cell phone 

 
Email 

     

 

Signature of Member 
 

WhatsApp Email 

0321-8561366 umer.islam@saigols.com 

 

Upon receipt of requests, the video-link login credentials will be shared with the 
interested shareholders on their email addresses or WhatsApp messages. The 
members can send their comments/suggestions related to the agenda items of the 
meeting through the above-mentioned means. 
 

11. Prohibition of Distribution of Gifts 
 
No gifts will be distributed at the Annual General Meeting as prohibited 
under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2017. 




 LDA Plaza  

 -06  11  2025  28  (76th) 

 2024  28 1

  2025  30  2

 75   7.5  3

 4

  5

 2025  07 



 2025  21 CDS/Physical 



 1-K   2025  282025  22  1


  II-  -10  48  2

 3

 4

 5

 2025  30  2023  21  2023  1389SRO  2023  27

 QR 
 

https://kil.com.pk/investor_information.php


 www.kil.com.pk 



 /  6

15  

 150  2001  2019  
 30 





 7

 242  2017 
  IBAN 

 1-K 
 CDC  /  CDC 

(CZ-50)   8

 CZ-50  1980 
 2.5  10 

 1-K  CDC   4 
 

 9
 72  2017 

 10

 2021  03  6  2021  15  4 
 AGM  AGM 


 AGM

 https//zoom.us/download  48 
    /  

    

 
umer.islam@saigols.com 0321-8561366

 
 11

  185  2017 



CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW 

For the year ended June 30, 2025 

 

It gives me great pleasure to present the Annual Report for the year ended 

June 30, 2025, to our valued members and stakeholders and to apprise them of 

the overall performance and effectiveness of the Board.  

 

The Board of Directors of Kohinoor Industries Limited is performing its duties in 

accordance with law and in the best interest of the Company and its 

shareholders as required under the Code of Corporate Governance, an annual 

evaluation of the Board of Directors of the Company is carried out. The purpose 

of this evaluation is to ensure that the Board's overall performance and 

effectiveness is measured and benchmarked against expectations in the context 

of objectives set for the Company. 

 

For the financial year ended June 30, 2025, the Board's overall performance and 

effectiveness has been assessed as satisfactory. This is based on an evaluation 

of integral components, including vision, mission and values; engagement in 

strategic planning; formulation of policies; monitoring the organization's 

business activities; monitor financial resource management.  

 

l am grateful to our shareholders who show their trust by investing in us and 

our customers who recognize us as their business partner. I am also appreciative 

of the many contributions of my fellow Board members and their dedication to 

the success of the Company. We remain committed to maintaining this trust in 

years to come with stellar financial performance.  

 

 

 

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD 

 
 

 

 

M. NASEEM SAIGOL 

Chairman 

06 October 2025 



 
 2025  30 

 2025  30


 
  



 


 2025  30





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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 
The Directors of the Company presented before the shareholders the 76th Annual 
Report along with audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 
June 30, 2025. 
 
During the period under review, the Company continued its business of renting the 
premises of the Company and earned gross revenue of Rs. 85.829 million as 
compared to gross revenue of Rs. 85.654 million in the preceding year. The 
Company earned profit after taxation of Rs. 75.414 million as compared to 38.720 
million with an EPS of Rs. 2.49 in comparison to Rs. 1.28 in the corresponding 
period last year. The said increase is due to profit in investment of mutual fund 
and increase in investment value of associated company’s shares.  

 
FUTURE OUTLOOK 
The management is continuously evaluating viable business propositions, which 
may have positive impact on the Company’s financials. We are hopeful that in the 
coming years, the Company will be able to commence more lucrative business in 
addition to renting the premises. The business (renting) of the company have not 
any impact on the environment and there is no trend and factor affect the future 
development, performance and position of the company business. 
 
GOING CONCERN 
The company is almost debt free except sponsor’s loan which doesn’t have financial 
burden on the Company’s profitability as it is interest free and it is not payable on 
demand but payable at the discretion of the Company. The Company’s assets are 
sufficient to meet all its obligations and therefore no doubt about its ability to 
continue as a going concern. 
 
DIVIDENDS 
The Directors of the company has recommended a final cash dividend for the Year 
ended June 30, 2025 at Re. 0.75 per share i.e. 7.5%. 
 
The Board of Directors has approved a formal policy for remuneration of Executive 
and Non-executive Directors, as recommended by the Human Resource and 
Remuneration Committee. As per policy, the Company have not pay any 
remuneration to directors. 
 
CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT 
Board of Directors’ places great importance for an effective cash flow management 
so as to ensure smooth running of the business. For this purpose, cash inflows and 
outflows are projected on regular basis and verified periodically.  
 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 
A system of sound internal control is established and prevailing in the Company. 
The system of internal control is designed in a manner to ensure achievement of 
Company's business objectives and operational efficiency, reliable financial 
reporting and compliance with various statutory laws. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 
We are pleased to inform you that as a member of business community, we are in 
touch with social bodies and authorities to find ways and means to help them in 
their social programs and projects. 
 
 



STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & FINANCIAL 

REPORTING FRAMEWORK 
In compliance with Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework of the Securities 
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 the Directors are pleased to report that: 
 
i) The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present 

fair state of Company's operations, cash flows and changes in equity. 
ii) Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained as required 

under the Companies Act, 20 l 7.  
iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the 

preparation of financial statements and changes, wherever made, have been 
adequately disclosed. Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and 

prudent judgment. 
iv) International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial 

Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in 
the preparation of financial statements, and any departure there from has been 
adequately disclosed and explained. 

v) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively 
implemented and monitored. 

vi) Key operating and financial data for the last six years is annexed. 
vii) Outstanding taxes and levis are given in the notes to the financial statements. 
viii) No adverse material changes and commitments affecting the financial position 

of the Company have occurred between the end of the financial year to which 
this balance sheet relates and the date of the Director's Report. 

ix) The figures in the financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2025, have 
been audited by external auditors of the Company. 

x) The Company has fulfilled its major statutory and financial obligations. 
 
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE 
The requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance set out by the Pakistan 
Stock Exchange in its Listing Regulations relevant for the year ended June 30, 
2025 have been adopted by the Company and have been duly complied with. A 
statement to this effect is annexed to the Report. 
 
BOARD EVALUATION 
In compliance with Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2019, the Board has 

put in place a mechanism for the annual evaluation of Board's performance. The 
evaluation of the performance of the Board is essentially an assessment of how the 
board has performed on all of the selected parameters. 
 
HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT 
Your company is well aware of the importance of skilled workers and staff therefore 
the company is strongly committed towards all aspects of safety, health and 
environment connected with our business. 
 
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 
Statement showing the Pattern of Shareholding as at June 30, 2025 required under 
the Companies Act, 2017 and the Code of Corporate Governance are annexed. 
 
GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT 
Gender Pay Gap statement is annexed. 
 
 
 



COMPOSITION OF BOARD 

Composition of the Board of Directors and meetings attended are as under; 
 

Names  Category 
Meeting 

attended 

Sheikh Aftab Ahmad 

Mrs. Sadaf Kashif 

Independent Director 

Female Director/ 

Independent Director 

4 

4 

Mr. M. Naseem Saigol 

Non-Executive 

Directors 

4 

Mr. Muhammad Murad Saigol 4 

Mr. Muhammad Omer Farooq 4 

Mr. Muhammad Athar Rafiq 4 

Mr. Muhammad Zeid Yousuf Saigol Executive Director 4 

 
COMMITTEE’S 
Detail of Committee’s of Board is as under; 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
Mrs. Sadaf Kashif    Chairperson/Member 
Mr. Muhammad Murad Saigol  Member 
Mr. Muhammad Omer Farooq  Member 
 
HR & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
Mrs. Sadaf Kashif    Chairperson/Member 
Mr. M. Naseem Saigol   Member 
Mr. M. Zeid Yousuf Saigol   Member 
 
We wish to thank to the shareholders for their support. We are pleased to record 
our appreciation of the services rendered by the employees of the company and 
hope that the same spirit of devotion will continue in future. 
 
 

   For and on behalf of the Boards 
 
 
      __________________________   ____________________ 
Lahore     M. ZEID YOUSUF SAIGOL   M. MURAD SAIGOL 
October 06, 2025    Chief Executive       Director 








  2025  30    (76th) 
 38.720  75.414  85.654  85.829 

 1.28  2.49 









 7.5%  0.75  2025  30 











 2019  
 SECP  


 2017   


 IFRSs  IASs   


  
 

  
  

 2025  30 



 2025  30 


 



 2019  







 2025  30  2017 
 


 

  








 6 

  1  


   

  







 / 

  

  

  

  

  




/  
 
 


/  
 
 





   
2025  06  



KOHINOOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE

(Rupees in '000)

PARTICULARS 2024-25 2023-24 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20

Financial Position

Paid up capital 303,025        303,025        303,025        303,025        303,025        303,025        

Reserves 187,394        187,394        187,394        187,394        187,394        187,394        

Fixed asset at cost 18,551          18,551          15,582          15,532          14,387          14,387          

Investment Property 923,305        901,394        880,878        856,514        847,646        838,924        

Accumulated Depericiation 14,216          13,332          12,867          12,439          12,056          11,913          

Current Assets 216,940        163,303        122,339        115,495        84,077          79,140          

Current Liablilities 54,370          51,925          44,046          60,758          59,417          411,815        

Income

Sales / Revenue 85,829          85,655          78,278          68,076          61,909          56,426          

Other Income 44,413          50,899          43,744          12,738          24,946          34,441          

Gross Profit -                -                -                -                -                -                

Pre tax profit / (Loss) 87,933          73,799          55,469          44,459          59,511          72,175          

Taxation (12,519)         (35,079)         (11,904)         (11,495)         (14,894)         15,437          

Profit / Loss after taxation 75,414          38,720          43,565          32,964          44,523          87,612          

Unappropriated profit / (Loss) (388,419)       (463,788)       (502,458)       (545,839)       (578,784)       (600,728)       

STATISTICS AND RATIOS

Gross profit to sales % 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Pre tax profit / (Loss) to capital % 29.01% 24.35% 18.31% 14.67% 19.64% 23.82%

Current ratio 3.99              3.14              2.78              1.90              1.42              0.19              

Paid up value per share (Rs.) 10                 10                 10                 10                 10                 10                 

Earning after tax per share (Rs.) 2.49              1.28              1.44              1.09              1.47              2.89              

Cash dividend % 7.50% -                -                -                -                7.50%



FORM 20
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

(Section 227(2)(f))

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

1.1 Name of the Company   KOHINOOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED

2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 30-06-2025

     ------Shareholdings------

2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held

798 1 100 21,536

514 101 500 140,634

222 501 1,000 168,111

350 1,001 5,000 828,146

60 5,001 10,000 469,257

29 10,001 15,000 354,262

15 15,001 20,000 277,249

15 20,001 25,000 347,243

8 25,001 30,000 224,703

3 30,001 35,000 96,679

5 35,001 40,000 187,518

4 40,001 45,000 168,978

6 45,001 50,000 285,983

3 50,001 55,000 158,450

2 55,001 60,000 120,000

2 60,001 65,000 126,500

3 65,001 70,000 205,291

4 75,001 80,000 311,570

1 85,001 90,000 86,000

4 95,001 100,000 396,500

2 100,001 105,000 225,881

1 125,001 130,000 136,662

2 160,001 165,000 330,000

2 170,001 175,000 345,550

1 180,001 185,000 183,268

1 195,001 200,000 200,000

1 210,001 215,000 210,500

1 285,001 290,000 286,519

1 340,001 345,000 342,841

1 495,001 500,000 500,000

1 880,001 885,000 883,020

1 2,745,001 2,750,000 2,750,000

1 5,335,001 5,340,000 5,335,219

1 6,265,001 6,270,000 6,268,500

1 7,325,001 7,330,000 7,329,973

2066 30,302,543



Sr. No. Name
No. of Shares 

Held
Percentage

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties: -                   -                  

Mutual Funds:

1 GOLDEN ARROW SELECTED STOCKS FUND 299                  0.0010

2 SECURITY STOCK FUND LTD. 560                  0.0018

Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children:  

1 MR. M. NASEEM SAIGOL (CDC) 5,335,219        17.6065

2 MR. MUHAMMAD OMER FAROOQ 2,625               0.0087

3 SHEIKH AFTAB AHMED (CDC) 175,000           0.5775

4 MR. MUHAMMAD ATHAR RAFIQ 2,500               0.0083

5 MR. MUHAMMAD ZEID YOUSAF SAIGOL 2,511               0.0083

6 MR. MUHAMMAD MURAD SAIGOL 2,500               0.0083

7 MRS. SADAF KASHIF 2,500               0.0083

8 MRS. SEHYR SAIGOL W/O MR. M. NASEEM SAIGOL (CDC) 170,550           0.5628

Executives: -                   -                  

Public Sector Companies & Corporations: -                   -                  

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 1,281,082        4.2276

Institution, Insurance Companies, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting interest in the listed company

1 MRS. AMBER HAROON SAIGOL (CDC) 7,329,973        24.1893

2 EFG HERMES UAE L.L.C (CDC) 6,268,500        20.6864

3 MR. M. NASEEM SAIGOL (CDC) 5,335,219        17.6065

4 MR. LIAQUAT ALI (CDC) 1,929,000        6.3658

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, CEO, CFO, Company

Secretary, Their spouses and minor children:

S. No. NAME SALE PURCHASE

KOHINOOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Categories of Shareholding required under Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

As on June 30, 2025

NIL



Categories of Shareholders No. of Shareholders Share held Percentage

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse

and minor children 5,693,405 18.7885     

Associated Companies, undertakings and related party - - -

NIT and ICP 35,647 0.1176       

Banks Development Financial Institutions Non Banking

Financial Institution 25,337 0.0836       

Insurance Companies 4,675 0.0154       

Modarabas and Mutual Funds 1,447 0.0048       

General Public 18,060,259 59.5998     

Others (to be specified)

Pension Funds 30,578 0.1009       

Leasing Companies 36,750 0.1213       

Abondond Properties 1,860 0.0061       

Other Companies 1,098 0.0036       

Joint Stock Companies 96,132 0.3172       

Foreign Companies 6,315,355 20.8410     

30,302,543 100.0000   2,066

2

1

1

32

13

1,984

1

15

3

4

8

2




2025  30

   
 



 

18.7885 

-

0.1176 

0.0836 

0.0154 

0.0048 

59.5998 

0.1009 

0.1213 

0.0061 

0.0036 

0.3172 

20.8410 

5,693,405 

-

35,647 

25,337 

4,675 

1,447 

18,060,259 

30,578 

36,750 

1,860 

1,098 

96,132 

6,315,355 

8

-

2

15

3

4

1,984

1

1

1

2

32

13

   

   

  

   

   

  

  

  

  

 







 


  

 
 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

100.0000 30,302,543 2,066 


-   




859 
5,693,405 

- 
- 

1,281,082 
20,862,692 

 


           





GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 10 OF 2024

Following is the gender pay gap calculated for the year ended 30-06-2025.

(i) Mean Gender Pay Gap: 4736/4736*100   = 100

    Houly rate Male Employees 4,736                     

    Houly rate Female Employees -                         

(ii) Median Gender Pay Gap: 4736/4736*100   = 100

    Houly rate Male Employees 4,736                     

    Houly rate Female Employees -                         

(iii) Any other data / detail as deemed relevant: Nil

Gender Pay Gap Statement under circular 10 of 2024

KOHINOOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED



STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES  

(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 
 

Name of company:  KOHINOOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Year ending:  JUNE 30, 2025 

 

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: - 

 

1. The total number of directors are Seven as per the following: 

 

a) Male:      Six 

b) Female:      One 

 

2. The composition of board is as follows: 

 

Category Names 

Independent Directors/ 

Female Director 

Sheikh Aftab Ahmad 

Mrs. Sadaf Kashif 

Non-Executive Directors 

Mr. M. Naseem Saigol 

Mr. Muhammad Murad Saigol 

Mr. Muhammad Omer Farooq 

Mr. Muhammad Athar Rafiq 

Executive Director Mr. Muhammad Zeid Yousuf Saigol 

 

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, including 

this company; 

 

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it 

throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures; 

 

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the company. 

The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or 

updating is maintained by the company; 

 

6.  All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the Board/ 

shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;  

 

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the Board for 

this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, 

recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board; 

 

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and 

these Regulations; 

 

9.  Five out of Seven Directors already attended Directors’ Training Program (DTP). Two directors already exempted from 

the requirement of DTP as per Regulation No. 19(2) of the CCG Regulation, 2019. 

 

10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head of internal audit, including 

their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the 

Regulations; 

 

11. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board; 

 



12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below. - 

 

a) Audit Committee: 

 

1. Mrs. Sadaf Kashif 

2. Mr. Muhammad Murad Saigol 

3. Mr. Muhammad Omer Farooq 

 

b) HR and Remuneration Committee: 

 

1. Mrs. Sadaf Kashif 

2. Mr. M. Naseem Saigol 

3. Mr. Muhammad Zeid Yousuf Saigol 

 

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee for 

compliance; 

 

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following, - 

 

a) Audit Committee: 

 

1. September 30, 2024 

2. October 30, 2024 

3. February 28, 2025 

4. April 28, 2025 

 

b) HR and Remuneration Committee: 

 

1. September 30, 2024 

 

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function/ or has outsourced the internal audit function to who are 

considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the 

company; 

 

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality 

Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight 

Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) 

guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the 

partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) 

of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the 

company; 

 

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in 

accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that 

they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard; 

 

18. We confirm that all requirements of the Regulations 3, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied 

with.  

 

19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than Regulations 3, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are appended below. 

 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

                               Chief Executive              Director 



EXPLANATION FOR NON-COMPLIANCE OF NON-MANDATORY  

Requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance, 2019 (“CCG”) 
 

Sr.# Requirement Explanation of Non-Compliance Regulation 

Number 
1 It is mandatory that each listed company 

shall have at least two or one third 

members of the Board, whichever is 

higher, as independent directors. 

The Company currently has two elected 

independent directors out of Total seven 

directors on the Board. Fractional 

requirement for Independent directors 

have not been rounded up as both 

independent directors have requisite 

competencies, skills, knowledge and 

experience to discharge and execute their 

duties competently as per laws and 

regulations under which hereby fulfill the 

necessary requirements; therefore, not 

warrant the appointment of a third 

independent director. 

6(1) 

2 The Board constitute the  anti-harassment 

policy to safeguard the rights and well-

being of employees 

 

Currently, the Board has not constituted an 

anti-harassment policy and the functions 

are being performed by the Human 

Resource department according to the 

company’s Grievance Policy. 

 

10 

3 As per CCG 2019 "10A.- Role of the 

Board and its members to address 

Sustainability Risks and Opportunities 

The board will take appropriate measures 

to proactively understand and address the 

principal as well as emerging sustainability 

risks and opportunities relevant to the 

company and its business, including 

climate-related risks and opportunities,  

assess their  potential financial and 

operational impacts and  implement 

strategies for management and mitigation 

thereof 

 

10 

4 Nomination Committee: 
 

The Board may constitute a separate 

committee, designated as the nomination 

committee, of such number and class of 

directors, as it may deem appropriate in 

its circumstances. 

Currently, the board has not constituted a 

separate Nomination Committee and the 

functions are being performed by the 

Human Resource & Remuneration 

Committee. 

29(I) 

5 Risk Management Committee: 

 

The Board may constitute the risk 

management committee, of such number 

and class of directors, as it may deem 

appropriate in its circumstances, to carry 

out a review of effectiveness of risk 

management procedures and present a 

report to the Board. 

The Board has not constituted a separate 

risk management committee however the 

risk is managed at respective department 

level which is also supervised by the 

departmental head. 

30(I) 

6 Disclosure of significant policies on 

website 

The company may post key elements of 

its significant policies, brief synopsis of 

reference of the Board Committees on its 

website and key elements of the directors’ 

remuneration policy 

The requirement to disclose significant 

policies on the website is non-mandatory 

in regulation No. 35(1), and thus the 

Company has uploaded limited 

information in this respect on its website. 

The Company is, however, considering 

placing key elements and synopsis of other 

policies on its website. 

 

35 

 



Russell Bedford 
taking you further 

Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim IqbaI Rafiq 
Chartered Accountants 

72-A, Faisal Town, 
Lahore - 54770, Pakistan. 

T: +9242 35160430-33 
E: lahore@rsrir.com  
W: www.rsrir.com  

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT 

To the members of KOHINOOR INDUSTIRES LIMITED 
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 [the 'Regulations'] prepared by the Board of Directors of KOHINOOR INDUSTRIES 
LIMITED for the year ended 30 June 2025 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance 
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the 
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of 
various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and 
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to 
consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an 
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks. 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are 
only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party 
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of 
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the 
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2025. 

The engagement partner on the review resulting in this independent auditor's review report is ALl RAZA JAFFERY. 

RAHMN SARFARAZ RA 
Chartered Accountants 

Lahore I 06 October 2025 

UDIN: CR2025107048ty3J4Kvn 

L RAFIQ 

Member of Russell Bedford International - a global network of independent professional services firms
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Russell Bedford 
taking you further 

Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Iqbal Rafiq 
Chartered Accountants 

72-A, Faisal Town, 
Lahore - 54770, Pakistan. 

T: ~92 4235160430-33 
E: Iahore@rsrir.com  
W: www.rsrir.com  

IN DEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the members of KOHINOOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of KOHINOOR INDUSTIRES LIMITED ['the Company'], which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2025, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory 
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of 
financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes 
in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting 
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 
(XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's 
affairs as at 30 June 2025 and of the profit, other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for 
the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ['ISAs'] as applicable in Pakistan. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan ['the Code'] and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Mailers 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to report. 

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in 
the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX 
of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Member of Russell Bedford International - a global network of independent professional services firms 

I
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Russell Bedford 
taking you further 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of user taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit. 

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017); 

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been 
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of 
account and returns; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the 
Company's business; and 

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980). 
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Russell Bedford 
taking you further 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is ALl RAZA JAFFERY. 

RAHMA,!SARFARAZ RAHII IQBI RAFIQ 
Chartered Accountants 

Lahore I 06 October 2025 

UDIN: AR2025107040mn5gLlaM 
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KOHINOOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2025 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 

Authorized share capital 6 

Rupees 

400,000,000 

Rupees 

400,000,000 

Issued ordinary share capital 7 303,025,430 303,025,430 

Share premium 8 187394,755 187,394,755 

Revaluation reserve 651,264,077 651,264,077 

Accumulated losses (388,419,162) (463,788,415) 

Loans from directors and other shareholders 9 353,682,503 353,682,503 

TOTAL EQUITY 1,106,947,603 1,031.578,350 

LIABILITIES 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Employees retirement benefits 10 4,926,895 3,571,373 

4,926,895 3,571,373 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Trade and other payables 11 39,712,264 36,815,676 

Unclaimed dividend 12 2,190,252 2,239,099 

Income tax payable 12,467,239 12,869963 

54,369,755 51,924,738 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 59,296,650 55,496,111 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 13 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,166,244,253 1,087,074,461 

The annexed notes from I to 45 form an integral part of these finanical statements 
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KOHINOOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2025 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Rupees Rupees 

Property and equipment 14 4,334,435 5,218,852 

Investment property 15 923,304,760 901,394,450 

Long term investments 16 20,270,250 16,131150 

Long term deposits 17 166,376 166,376 

Deferred taxation 18 1,228,276 860,520 

949,304,097 923,771,348 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Lease rentals receivable 20,000 20,000 

Advances and prepayments 19 5,830,358 3,566,597 

Short term investments 20 164,817,932 119,546,127 

Advance income tax I income tax refundable 28,585,490 22799,521 

Cash and bank balances 21 17,686,376 17,370,868 

216,940,156 163,303,113 

TOTAL ASSETS 1,166,244,253 1,087,074,461 

The annexed notes from I to 45 form an integral part of these finanical statements 



KOHINOOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Rental Income 

Other income 

Operating expenses 

Other expenses 

23 

24 

25 

Rupees 

85,829,232 

44,413,451 

Rupees 

85,654,536 

50,898,672 

(37,719,814) 

(2,451,931) 

(47,214,709) 

(9,645,500) 

(40,171,745) (56,860,209) 

Operating profit 

Finance costs 

Share of profiti(loss) of associate 

26 

16 

90,070,938 

(11,226) 

2,456,679 

79,692,999 

(14,017) 

(3,538,833) 

Profit before levies and income taxes 

Provision for levies 27 

92,516,391 

(4,582,979) 

76,140,149 

(2,341,098) 

Profit before income taxes 

Provision for income taxes 28 

87,933,412 

(12,519,353) 

73,799,051 

(35,078,946) 

Profit after income taxes 75,414,059 38,720,105 

Basic earnings per share 29 2.49 1.28 

The annexed notes from I to 45 form an integral part of these finanical statements 
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KOHINOOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Rupees Rupees 

Profit after income taxes 

Other comprehensive income: 

items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 

75,414,059 38,720,105 

Remeasurements of defined benefit obligations (63,107) (70,837) 

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 18,301 20,543 

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 

(44,806) (50,294) 

Other comprehensive loss after income taxes (44,806) (50,294) 

Total comprehensive income 75,369,253 38669,811 

The annexed notes from Ito 45 form an integral part of these finanical statements 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
,-- ___,____) 



KOHINOOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 

Issued 
share capital 

Share 
Premium 

Revaluation 
reserve 

Accumulated 
losses 

Loans 
from directors 
and sponsors 

Total 
equity 

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees 

As at 01 July 2023 303,025,430 187,394,755 651,264,077 (502,458,226) 353,682,503 992,908,539 

Total comprehensive income 

Profit after income taxes 38,720,105 38,720,105 
Other comprehensive loss after income taxes (50,294) (50,294) 

38,669,811 38,669,811 

As at 30 June 2024 303,025,430 187,394,755 651,264,077 (463.788,415) 353,682,503 1,031,578,350 

As at 01 July 2024 303,025,430 187,394,755 651,264,077 (463,788,415) 353,682,503 1,031,578,350 

Total comprehensive income 

Profit after income taxes 75,414,059 75,414,059 
Other comprehensive loss after income taxes (44,806) (44,806) 

75,369,253 75,369,253 

As at 30 June 2025 303,025,430 187,394,755 651,264,077 (388,419,162) 353,682,503 1,106,947,603 

The annexed notes from I to 45 form an integral part of these finanical statements 
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KOHINOOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash generated from operations 

Payments for: 
Income taxes and levies 
Employee retirement benefits 

30 

Rupees 

50,317,856 

(23,640,480) 
(396,000) 

Rupees 

43,604,932 

(16,028,625) 
(411,000) 

Net cash generated from operating activities 26,281,376 27,165,307 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of property and equipment (2,969,000) 

Dividend income 18,331,915 15,607,317 

Purchase of short term investments (48,248,936) (119,266,220) 

Proceeds from disposal of short term investments 4,000,000 

Net cash used in investing activities (25,917,021) (106,627,903) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Dividend paid (48,847) (13,842) 

Net cash used in financing activities (48,847) (13,842) 

NET INCREASEI(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 315,508 (79,476,438) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 17,370,868 96,847,306 

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 31 17,686,376 17,370,868 

The annexed notes from I to 45 form an integral part of these finanica! statements 
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KOHINOOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 

I LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS 

Kohinoor Industrues Limited [the Company] was incorporated Pakistan under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now 
Companies Act, 2017) on 31 August 1948. The Company is a 'Public Company Limited by Shares' and is listed on Pakistan Stock 
Exchange Limited. The Company was initially engaged in manufacture and sale of yarn. However, the Board of Directors of the 
Company in its meeting held on 30 April 2008 decided to close the business as due to increase in prices of raw material and other 
inputs without increase in yarn sales prices in the local and international market, the operations of the textile unit had become 
uneconomical and huge losses were expected to arise if the business was carried on. Subsequently, the Company amended its 
memorandum of association to include in its objects, leasing out of its land and buildings under operating lease arrangements, as 
and when considered fit. 

1.1 Location of business units 

Registered office 1 0-G, Mushtaq Ahmed Gurmani Road, Lahore, Pakistan 

Investment property Collage Road, Madina Town, Faisalabad, Pakistan 

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION 

2.1 Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan. 
The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 

- International Financial Reporting Standards ['IFRS') issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as notified under 
the Companies Act, 2017; 

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards ['IFAS'] issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the 
Companies Act, 2017; and 

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS and IFAS Standards, the provisions 
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed. 

2.2 Basis of measurement 

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items, which are measured on 
an alternative basis as at the reporting date. 

Items Measurement basis 

Employees retirement benefits Present value 
Financial instruments Fair value/Amortized cost 
Investment property Fair value 

2.3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and 
associated assumptions and judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which forms the basis of making judgments about carrying values of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Subsequently, actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates 
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in 
which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 

2.3.1 Critical accounting judgements 

Critical accounting judgements made by the management in the application of accounting and reporting standards that have 
significant effect on the financial statements are as follows: 

(a) Business mode! assessment (see note 5.1.2) 

The Company classifies its financial assets on the basis of the Company's business model for managing the financial assets 
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. The Company determines the business model at a level that 
reflects how financial assets are managed to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement 
reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the 
risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed. 
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The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortized cost or fair value that are derecognized prior to their maturity to 
understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the 
asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the 
remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in 
business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets. No such changes were required during the 
year. 

(b) Significant increase in credit risk (see note 5.16.1) 

Expected credit losses ['ECL'] are measured, based on the Company's risk grading framework, at an allowance equal to 12-
month/lifetime ECL for 'performing' assets, or lifetime ECL for assets categorized as 'doubtful' or 'in default'. An asset is 
categorized as 'doubtful' when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. IFRS 9 does not define what 
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the 
Company takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking information. 

2.3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that may have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as 
follows: 

(a) Calculation of impairment allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets (see note 35.1.3) 

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets carried at amortized cost on date of 
initial recognition. The amount of expected credit losses is updated on each reporting date to reflect the changes in credit risk 
since initial recognition of the respective financial asset. Estimating expected credit losses and changes there in requires taking 
into account qualitative and quantitative forward looking information. When measuring expected credit losses on financial 
assets the Company uses reasonable and supportable forward looking information as well as historical data to calculate the 
difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the Company would expect to receive, taking into account 
cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements, if any. Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring 
expected credit losses. Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation 
of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions. If the ECL rates on financial assets carried 
at amortized cost were higher (lower) by 10%, the loss allowance on those assets would have been higher (lower) by Rs. 1.092 
million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 1.001 million). 

(b) Present value of defined benefit obligation (see note 10) 

The determination of the Company's defined benefit obligation depends on certain assumptions, which include selection of the 
discount rate, average rate of increase in salaries and mortality rates. The discount rate is set by reference to market yields at 
the end of the reporting period on government bonds as there is no deep market for high quality corporate bonds in Pakistan. 
Average rate of increase in salary are based on market expectations, inflation and historical trends. Mortality rates are based 
upon SLIC(2001-05) mortality table. These assumptions are considered to be a key source of estimation uncertainty as 
relatively small changes in the assumptions used may have a significant effect on the Company's financial statements within 
the next year. 

Present value of defined benefit obligation has been determined using projected unit credit method. The liability as at the 
reporting date has been determined by an independent actuary, Nauman Associates, Consulting Actuaries. The principal 
assumptions used in determining present value of defined benefit obligation are: 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Rupees Rupees 

Discount rate 11.75% 14.75% 
Expected rates of increase in salary 11.25% 14.25% 

An analysis of sensitivity for discount rate and expected rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of 
defined benefit obligation as at the reporting date showing how the defined benefit obligation would have been affected by 
changes in relevant actuarial assumption that were reasonably possible at that date is as follows: 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24  
Change Defined Change Defined 

in actuarial benefit in actuarial benefit 
assumption obligation assumption obligation 

Rupees Rupees 

Discount rate + 1% 4,682,170 + 1% 3,365,428 
- 1% 5,206,969 - 1% 3,807,007 

'— —' ----, 
Is-. 



KOHINOOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Expected rate of increase in salary 

Change Defined Change Defined 

in actuarial benefit in actuarial benefit 

assumption obligation assumption obligation 

Rupees Rupees 

+ 1% 5,210,726 + 1% 3810,195 

- 1% 4,674,604 - 1% 3,359,128 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is 
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. 
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of defined benefit obligation as at the reporting date 
has been calculated using projected unit credit method, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit 
obligation to be recognized in these financial statements. 

(C) Fair value of Investment property (see note 15.1). 

Most recent revaluation of investment property, comprising land and building, was carried out by an independent valuer, 
Medallion Services (Private) Limited, on 30 June 2025. Revalued amounts of investment property have been determined by 
reference to local market values taking into account prevailing fair market prices under the position and circumstances present 
on the date of valuation and current market scenario for properties of similar nature in the immediate neighborhood and 
adjoining areas. Land is valued using market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar properties. 
Significant inputs include estimated purchase price, including non-refundable purchase taxes and other costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition. Building is valued using cost approach that reflects the cost to the market participants to 
construct assets of comparable utility and age, adjusted for obsolescence and depreciation. Significant inputs include estimated 
construction costs and other ancillary expenditure. 

A 5% increase in estimated purchase price of land, including non-refundable purchase taxes and other costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of land or in estimated construction cost of buildings and other ancillary expenditure would result 
in a significant increase in fair value of land and building by Rs. 39.372 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 38.6 million) and Rs. 6.793 
million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 6.47 million) respectively. 

(d) Provisions for levies and income faxes under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (see note 27 and 28) 

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by appellate and other relevant legal forums 
while estimating its provisions for income taxes, levies and tax contingencies under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 ['the 
Ordinance']. 

The provision for levies and current tax under the Ordinance are estimated at Rs. 4,582,979 (30-Jun-24: Rs. 2,341,098) and 
Rs.12,794,946 (30-Jun-24: Rs. 12,869,963) respectively. The management believes that the provision for current tax and levies 
made in the financial statements is sufficient to discharge related liabilities under the Ordinance. 

The credit (30-Jun-24: provision) for deferred tax is estimated at Rs. 349,455 (30-Jun-24: Rs. 22,013,161) has been estimated 
after taking into account turnover and profit trends and their taxability under the current tax law. 

2.4 Functional currency 

These financial statements have been presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional currency. The amounts reported 
in these financial statements have been rounded to the nearest Rupee unless specified otherwise. 

2.5 Date of authorization for issue 

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and authorized for issue on 06 October 
2025. 

3 NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS EFFECTIVE DURING THE YEAR. 

The following new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards [lFRS] and International Accounting Standards [lAS], 
interpretations of and amendments to IFRS and lAS are effective in the current period but are either not relevant to the Company or 
their application does not have any material impact on the interim financial statements of the Company other than presentation and 
disclosures, except as stated otherwise. 

3.1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to lAS 1) 

The amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the requirements by helping companies determine whether, in the 
statement of financial position, debt and other liabilities with an uncertain settlement date should be classified as current (due or 
potentially due to be settled within one year) or non-current, 
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3.2 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16) 

The amendment clarifies how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the requirements 
in IFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale. 

3.3 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to lAS 1) 

The amendment clarifies how conditions with which an entity must comply within twelve months after the reporting period affect the 
classification of a liability. 

3.4 Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to lAS 7 and IFRS 7) 

The amendments add disclosure requirements, and 'signposts' within existing disclosure requirements, that ask entities to provide 
qualitative and quantitative information about supplier finance arrangements. 

4 NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS NOT YET EFFECTIVE. 

The following standards, interpretations and amendments are in issue which are not effective as at the reporting date and have not 
been early adopted by the Company. 

Effective date 
(annual periods beginning 

on or after) 

Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to lAS 21) 01 January 2025 

Amendments IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 regarding the classification and measurement of financial 
instruments 

Amendments IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 regarding the power purchase agreements 

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards — Volume 11 

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 

lFRS Si General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information 

lFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures 

01 January2026 

01 January2026 

01 January2026 

01 January 2027 

01 July 2027 

01 July 2027 

Other than aforementioned standards, interpretations and amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards which have 
not been notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for adoption. 

- IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 

- IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements 

- IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures 

The Company intends to adopt these new standards on their effective dates, subject to notification by Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan under section 225 of the Companies Act, 2017 regarding their adoption. The management anticipates that 
the adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations in future periods, will not have a material impact on the 
Company's interim financial statements other than in presentation/disclosures. 

5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements. 

5.1 Financial instruments 

5.1.1 Recognition 

A financial instrument is recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

5.1.2 Classification 

The Company classifies its financial assets on the basis of the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the 
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Financial liabilities are classified in accordance with the substance of 
contractual provisions. The Company determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition as follows: 
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(a) Financial assets at amortized cost 

These are financial assets held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cashflows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive Income f'fair value through 0C17 

These are: 

(i) financial assets held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cashflows and 
selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and 

(ii) investments in equity instruments, that are not held for trading nor contingent consideration recognized by the Company as 
acquirer in a business combination, for which the Company makes an irrevocable election at initial recognition to present 
changes in fair value on subsequent measurement in other comprehensive income. 

(C) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

These are financial assets which have not been classified as 'financial assets at amortized cost' or as financial assets at fair 
value through other comprehensive income', are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss or for which the 
Company makes an irrevocable election at initial recognition to designate as 'financial asset at fair value through profit or loss' if 
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency. 

(d) Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

These are financial liabilities which are not derivates, financial guarantee contracts, commitments to provide loans at below-
market interest rate, contingent consideration payable to an acquirer in a business combination or financial liabilities that arise 
when transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition. 

(e) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

These are financial liabilities which have not been classified as 'financial liabilities at amortized cost' or for which the Company 
makes an irrevocable election at initial recognition to designate as 'financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss if doing 
so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency. 

5.1,3 Measurement 

Measurement methods adopted are explained in individual policy statements associated with each financial instrument. 

5.1.4 De-recognition 

A financial asset is derecognized when the Company's contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or when 
the Company transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control of substantially all risks and rewards of the 
financial asset. A financial liability is derecognized when the Company's obligations specified in the contract expire or a discharged 
or cancelled. 

5.1.5 Off-setting 

A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if the Company has 
legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. 

5.2 Ordinary share capital 

Ordinary share capital is recognized as equity. Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognized 
as deduction from equity. 

5.3 Loans and borrowings 

Loans and borrowings, except for loan from directors and sponsors which are repayable at the Company's discretion and are not 
payable on demand, are classified as 'financial liabilities at amortized cost'. On initial recognition, these are measured at cost, being 
fair value at the date the liability is incurred, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured 
at amortized cost with any difference between cost and value at maturity recognized in the profit or loss over the period of the 
borrowings on an effective interest basis. 
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Loan from directors and sponsors which are repayable at the Company's discretion and are not payable on demand are stated in the 
statement of financial position at cost and presented as equity in accordance with guidance provided in Technical Release 32 
Accounting Directors' Loan' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. 

5.4 Trade and other payables 

5.4.1 Financial liabilities 

These are classified as 'financial liabilities at amortized cost. On initial recognition, these are measured at fair value at the date the 
liability is incurred, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest method, with interest recognized in profit or loss. 

5.4.2 Non-financial liabilities 

These, both on initial recognition and subsequently, are measured at cost. 

5.5 Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal and constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable 
that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the amount of obligation. The amount recognized as provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risk and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision 
is measured using cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 
Where outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable, or where a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation 
cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of outflow is remote. 

5.6 Property, plant and equipment 

Property and equipment assets held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes, are 
stated in the statement of financial position at their cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Assets in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet determined, are 
carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes the cost of material, labour and appropriate overheads directly 
relating to the construction, erection and installation of the asset and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in 
accordance with the Company's accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, determined on the same basis as other assets of 
the same class, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. 

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss, using rates specified in note 14, so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold 
land and assets under construction) over their useful lives, using the reducing balance method. Depreciation commences from the 
month in which the item is ready for intended use and is discontinued from the month in which the asset is disposed or classified as 
held for disposal. 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect 
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 

A property and equipment asset is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its 
continued use. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of such assets is determined as the difference between the 
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss. 

5.7 Investment property 

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property under construction for 
such purposes), is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Cost includes the cost of material, labour and appropriate 
overheads directly relating to the construction of the property and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance 
with the Company's accounting policy. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at fair value. Gains or 
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. 

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no 
future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property, calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognized in profit or loss in the period in 
which the property is derecognised. 

du' cudq 



KOHINOOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 ,JUNE 2025 

5.8 Investment in associates 

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in an 
associate is recognized initially in the statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Company's 
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate, dividends received and impairment losses, if any. 
When the Company's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Company's interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Company's net investment in the associate), the Company discontinues 
recognizing its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognized only to the extent that the Company has incurred legal or 
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. 

5.9 Trade and other receivables 

5.9.1 Financial assets 

These are classified as 'financial assets at amortized cost. On initial recognition, these are measured at fair value at the date of 
transaction, plus attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method, with interest recognized in profit or loss. 

5.9.2 Non-financial assets 

These, both on initial recognition and subsequently, are measured at cost. 

5.10 Investments in mutual funds 

Investments in mutual funds held for trading are mandatorily classified as 'financial assets at fair value thorugh profit or loss'. On 
initial recognition, these are measured at fair value on the date of acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured 
at fair value. Cumulative gains and losses from changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss. Dividend income is recognized in 
profit or loss when right to receive payment is established. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of these investments, calculated 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and their carrying amount, is recognized in profit or loss in the period in which 
the investment is derecognised. 

5.11 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash in hand and bank balances. Interest income on 
bank balances is recognized using effective interest method. 

5.12 Leases as 'Iessor 

The Company enters into operating lease agreements as a lessor with respect to its investment property. Rental income from 
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease, Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating 
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

5.13 Employee benefits 

5.13.1 Short-term employee benefits 

The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for services rendered by 
employees as a liability after deducting amount already paid and as an expense in profit or loss unless it is included in the cost of 
inventories or property, plant and equipment as permitted or required by the approved accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. If the amount paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of benefits, the excess is recognized as an asset to the 
extent that the prepayment would lead to a reduction in future payments or cash refund. 

5.13.2 Post-employment benefits 

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme (defined benefit plan) for all its employees who have completed the minimum 
qualifying service period. Liability is adjusted on each reporting date to cover the obligation and the adjustment is charged to income 
statement with the exception of remeasurements which are recognized in other comprehensive income. The amount recognized on 
statement of financial position represents the present value of defined benefit obligation. 
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5.14 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that 
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until 
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary 
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for 
capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. 

5.15 Income tax 

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent 
that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive 
income. 

5.15.1 Current taxation 

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous 
years. Provision for current tax is based on current rates of taxation in Pakistan after taking into account tax credits, rebates and 
exemptions available, if any. The amount of unpaid income tax in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as a liability. 
Any excess paid over what is due in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as an asset. 

5.15.2 Deferred taxation 

Deferred tax is accounted for by providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Deferred tax is measured at rates that are expected to be 
applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
reporting date. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for 
deductible temporary differences to the extent that future taxable profits will be available against which temporary differences can be 
utilized. 

5.16 Impairment 

5.16.1 Financial assets 

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets carried at amortized cost on date of initial 
recognition. The amount of expected credit losses is updated on each reporting date to reflect the changes in credit risk since initial 
recognition of the respective financial asset. 

Impairment is recognized at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses for financial assets for which credit risk has 
increased significantly since initial recognition. For financial assets for which credit risk is low, impairment is recognized at an 
amount equal to twelve months' expected credit losses, with the exception of lease rentals receivables, for which the Company 
recognizes lifetime expected credit losses estimated using internal credit risk grading based on the Company's historical credit loss 
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to lease rentals receivables, general economic conditions, and an assessment for 
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where 
appropriate. 

All impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an 
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the financial asset's 
carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of amortization, if no 
impairment loss had been recognized. 

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counter-party is in severe financial condition 
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Any recoveries made post write-off are recognized in profit or loss. 

5.16.2 Non-fInancIal assets 

The carrying amount of the Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable 
amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value 
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash 
generating unit. 
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An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable 
amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash generating units are 
allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro rata basis. Impairment losses recognized in prior periods 
are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is 
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used in determining the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed 
only to that extent that the asset's carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 

5.17 Earnings per share [EPS'] 

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS by the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on 
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit or loss attributable to 
ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. 

5.18 Comprehensive income 

Comprehensive income is the change in equity resulting from transactions and other events, other than changes resulting from 
transactions with shareholders in their capacity as shareholders. Total comprehensive income comprises all components of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income ['DCI']. DCI comprises items of income and expense, including reclassification adjustments, 
that are not recognized in profit or loss as required or permitted by accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, 
and is presented in 'statement of comprehensive income'. 

5.19 Segment reporting 

Segment reporting is based on the operating segments that are reported in the manner consistent with internal reporting of the 
Company. An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn 
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company's other 
components. An operating segment's operating results are reviewed regularly by the Chief Executive Officer to make decisions 
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is available. 
The Company is a single operating segment based on internal reporting to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. 

5.20 Fair value measurements 

'Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has 
access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. 

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values. 

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price - i.e. the fair value 
of the consideration given or received, If the Company determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction 
price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a 
valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation to the measurement, then the 
financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value on initial recognition and 
the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the 
instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out. 

When one is available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that 
instrument. A market is regarded as 'active' if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to 
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. 

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that 
market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction. 

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Company measures assets and long 
positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as 
follows. 

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
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- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair 
value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is 
significant to the entire measurement. 

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the 
change has occurred. 

5.21 DIvidend distribution to ordinary shareholders 

Dividend to ordinary shareholders is recognized as a deduction from accumulated profit in statement of changes in equity and as a 
liability, to the extent it is unclaimed/unpaid, in the Company's financial statements in the year in which the dividends are approved 
by the Company's shareholders. 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL 

40,000,000 (30-Jun-24: 40,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 

Rupees 

400,000,000 

Rupees 

400,000,000 

400,000,000 400,000,000 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

ISSUED ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL 

12,095,482 (30-Jun-24: 12,095,482) shares issued for cash 
18,207,061 (30-Jun-24: 18,207,061) shares issued as fully paid bonus shares 

Rupees 

120,954,820 
182,070,610 

Rupees 

120,954,820 

182,070,610 

303,025,430 303,025,430 

SHARE PREMIUM 

These represent unsecured, interest free loans provided by the directors and other shareholders of the Company. The Company has 
reached an understanding with the lenders that these loans shall be payable at the discretion of the Company and that these loans 
are not payable on demand. Accordingly, these loans have been classified as equity in accordance with guidance provided in 
Technical Release 32 'Accounting Directors' Loan' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. 

10 EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme, a defined benefit plan, for all its employees who have completed the 
minimum qualifying service period. Under the scheme, the Company pays a lump-sum benefit equal to last drawn monthly gross 
salary for each year of service to scheme members whereas the members of the scheme are not required to make any contributions 
to the scheme. The scheme is administered by the management of the Company under the supervision and directions of the Board 
of Directors of the Company. The amount recognized on statement of financial position represents present value of defined benefit 
obligation. 

6 

7 

8 

This represents premium on issue of right ordinary shares recognized under section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017. 

9 LOANS FROM DIRECTORS AND OTHER SHAREHOLDERS 
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Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation 

As at beginning of the year 
Charged to profit or loss for the year 10.2 

Benefits paid during the year 
Remeasurenients recognized in other comprehensive income 10.3 

Rupees 

3,571,373 
1,688,415 

(396,000) 
63,107 

Rupees 

2,514,871 

1,396,665 
(411,000) 

70,837 

As at end of the year 4,926,895 3,571,373 

Charge to profit or loss 

Current service cost 
Interest cost 

1,190,842 
497,573 

1,021,392 

375,273 

1,688,415 1,396,665 

Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income 

Actuarial (gain)lloss arising from: 
Changes in financial assumptions 
Experience adjustments 

(17,545) 
80,652 

(7,394) 
78,231 

63,107 70,837 

Average duration of the defined benefit obligation 

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is five years. 

Expected charge to profit or loss for the next financial year 

The defined benefit plan exposes the Company to the following actuarial risks: 

Interest risk: The discount rate used in determination of present value of defined benefit obligation has been determined by 
reference to market yield at the reporting date on government bonds since there is no deep market in long term corporate bonds in 
Pakistan. An increase in market yield resulting in a higher discount rate will decrease the defined benefit liability. 

Longevity risk: The present value of defined benefit obligation is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the expected 
remaining working lives of employees. An increase in the expected remaining working lives will increase the defined benefit 
obligation. However, the increase is not expected to be material. 

Salary risk: The present value of defined benefit obligation is calculated by reference to future salaries of employees. An increase in 
salary of employees will increase the defined benefit obligation. 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

Rupees Rupees 

Creditors 643,380 912,682 
Accrued liabilities 1,771,420 3,346,322 
Advances from customers 340,946 309,944 
Sales tax payable 20,642,050 20,642,050 
Levies payable 11.1 4,582,979 2,341.098 
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 371,704 371,704 
Workers' Welfare Fund 11.2 6,100,498 3,648,567 
Security deposits 5,215,503 5,215,503 
Other payables 43,784 27,806 

39,712,264 36,815,676 

10.1 

10.2 

10.3 

10.4 

10.5 

The expected charge to profit or loss for the year ending 30 June 2026 amounts to Rs. 1,913,857. 

10.6 Risk factors 
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Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Levies payable 

Rupees Rupees 

As at beginning of the year 2,341,098 - 

Charged to profit or loss for the year 27 4,582,979 2,341,098 

Paid/adjusted during the year (2,341,098) - 

As at end of the year 4,582,979 2,341,098 

Workers' Welfare Fund 

As at beginning of the year 3,648,567 2,039,348 

Charged to profit or loss for the year 27 2,451,931 1,609,219 

6,100,498 3,648,567 

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND 

This represents dividend on ordinary shares declared in the previous years but not claimed by the shareholders as at the reporting 
date. 

13 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

13.1 Contingencies 

13.1.1 Sales tax and other liabilities of Rs. 5.730 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 5.730 million) are pending in appeals. The Company has filed 
reference application before the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore and other appellate forums. The subject reference is still 
pending before the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore. 

13.1.2 Suit filed by United Investment Limited against the State and the Company for possession of land at Kala Shah Kaku, Tehsil 
Ferozewala, District Sheikhupura acquired by the State. However, no liability involving financial burden on the Company is expected 
to arise. Case is pending for hearing as confirmed by legal advisor. 

13.1.3 Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ['SECP'] filed a petition with the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore on the 
request of the shareholders against the improper management of operations of the Company. In response to this petition, The 
Lahore High Court issued a notice of hearing to the Company. The Company in this respect attended hearing and submitted its reply 
accordingly. The subject reference is still pending before the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore. 

13.2 CommItments 

There are no known commitments as at the reporting date. 

11.2 

12 
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14 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

30-Jun-25 

COST DEPRECIATION Net book 

value as at 
30-Jun-25 

Rupees 

As at 
01 -Jul-24 
Rupees 

Additions 
Rupees 

Disposals 
Rupees 

As at 
30-Jun-25 

Rupees 
Rate 

% 

As at 
01-Jul-24 
Rupees 

For the year 
Rupees 

Disposals 
Rupees 

As at 
30-Jun-25 

Rupees 

Operating fixed assets 

Furniture and fixtures 1,357,000 1,357,000 10 931,160 42,584 973,744 383,256 

Office equipment 3,518,000 3,518,000 10 2,350,306 116,769 2,467,075 1,050,925 

Vehicles 13,675,675 13,675,675 20 10,050,357 725,064 10,775,421 2,900,254 

18,550,675 18,550,675 13,331,823 884,417 14,216,240 4,334,435 

30-Jun-24 

COST DEPRECIATION Net book 

As at As at As at As at value as at 

01-Jul-23 Additions Disposals 30-Jun-24 Rate 01-Jul-23 For the year Disposals 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-24 

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees % Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees 

Operating fixed assets 

Furniture and fixtures 1,357,000 - 1,357000 10 883,844 47,316 931,160 425,840 

Office equipment 3,518,000 - 3,518,000 10 2,220,562 129,744 2,350,306 1,167,694 

Vehicles 10,706,675 2,969,000 13,675,675 20 9,762,569 287,788 10,050,357 3,625,318 

15,581,675 2,969,000 - 18,550,675 12,866,975 464,848 13,331,823 5,218,852 
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30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 

Land 

Rupees Rupees 

As at beginning of the year 772,000,000 757,525,000 

Changes in fair value 15.1 15,440,000 14,475,000 

As at end of the year 787,440,000 772,000,000 

Building 
As at beginning of the year 129,394,450 123,352,920 

Changes in fair value 15.1 6,470,310 6,041,530 

As at end of the year 135,864,760 129,394,450 

923,304,760 901,394,450 

15.1 Most recent valuation of land, building and plant and machinery was carried out by an independent valuer, Medellion Services 
(Private) Limited, on 30 June 2025 and was incorporated in these financial statements. For basis of valuation, refer to note 2.3.2(c). 
As per most recent valuation, forced sale values of land, building and plant and machinery are as follows: 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Rupees Rupees 

Land 669,324,000 656,200,000 

Building 115,485,046 109,985,283 

15.2 Investment property of the Company is situated at Collage Road. Madina Town Faisalabad with a total land area of 13.25 Acres. The 
land can be disposed-off only with the prior approval of the Government of Punjab. 

16 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS 

This represents investment in ordinary shares of Kohinoor Power Company Limited ['KPCL'], an associate. KPCL is a Public Limited 
Company incorporated in Pakistan under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange 
Limited. KPCL was formed with the objective of generation and sale of electric power. Subsequently, it amended its memorandum of 
association to change its principal activity to leasing out machinery and buildings under operating lease arrangements. Registered 
office of KPCL is situated in the Province of Punjab at 10-G, Mushtaq Ahmed Gurmani Road, Lahore. 

The investment has been accounted for by using equity method. Particulars of investment are as follows: 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

Percentage of ownership interest 22.50% 22.50% 

Cost of investment 
2,835,000 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 90,000,000 90,000,000 
Share of post acquisition loss (18,578,334) (21,035,013) 

Dividend income from investment in associate (10,800,000) (10,800,000) 

60,621,666 58,164,987 

Accumulated impairment (40,351,416) (42,033,837) 

20,270,250 16,131,150 

16.1 Extracts of financial statements of associate 

The assets and liabilities of Kohinoor Power Company Limited as at the reporting date and related revenue and profit for the year 
then ended based on the audited financial statements are as follows: 

izsiI 



KOHINOOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Rupees 

Non-current assets 81,646,578 

Rupees 

77,204,037 

  

Current assets 42,696,997 37,699,934 

Non-current liabilities 
Current liabilities 2,234,387 3,713,358 

Revenue 6,742,067 11,118,458 

Profiti(loss) for the year 
Other comprehensive income for the year 

10,918,575 (15,728,146) 

  

Break-up value per share 9.69 8.82 

Share of profitl(Ioss) and other adjustments to net assets 16. 1.1 2,456,679 (3,538,833) 

Market value per share 7.15 5.69 

16.1.1 Share of profit! (loss) and other adjustments to net assets 

Share of profitl(loss) for the year 2,456,679 (3,538833) 

Share of other comprehensive income for the year 

2,456,679 (3,538833) 

17 LONG TERM DEPOSITS 

These have been deposited with various utility companies and regulatory authorities. These are classified as 'financial assets at 
amortized cost' under IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' which are required to be carried at amortized cost. However, these, being held 
for an indefinite period with no fixed maturity date, are carried at cost as their amortized cost is impracticable to determine. 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

18 DEFERRED TAXATION 

Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences 18.1 1,428,800 1,035,698 

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences 18.1 (200,524) (175,178) 

Net deferred tax asset 1,228,276 860,520 

18.1 RecognIzed deferred liabilities and tax assets 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are attributable to the following: 

30-Jun-25 

As at Recognized in Recognized As at 

01-Jul-24 profit or loss in OCI 30-Jun-25 
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees 

Deferred tax assets 

Long term investment 
Impairment allowances 
Employees retirement benefits 1,035,698 374,801 18,301 1,428,800 

1,035,698 374,801 18,301 1,428,800 

Deferred tax liabilities 

Property and equipment (133,192) 49,439 (83,753) 
Short term investments (41,986) (74,785) (116,771) 

(175,178) (25,346) (200,524) 

860,520 349,455 18,301 1,228,276 

r — - 
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Deferred tax assets 

30-J un-24 

As at 
01-Jul-23 
Rupees 

Recognized in 
profit or loss 

Rupees 

Recognized 
in OCI 

Rupees 

As at 
30-Jun-24 

Rupees 

Long term investment 9,935,269 (9,935,269) 

Impairment allowances 12,212,976 (12,212,976) 

Employees retirement benefits 729,313 285,842 20,543 1,035,698 

22,877,558 (21,862,403) 20,543 1,035,698 

Deferred tax liabilities 

Property and equipment (24,420) (108,772) (133,192) 

Short term investments (41,986) (41,986) 

(24,420) (150,758) (175,178) 

22,853,138 (22,013,161) 20,543 860,520 

18.2 Deferred tax arising from timing differences has been calculated at 29% (30-Jun-24: 29%) except for those pertaining to income 
from investment in mutual funds taxable as a separate block under the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 which has 
been calculated at 12.5% (30-Jun-24: 15%) of the timing differences based on tax rates notified by the Government of Pakistan for 
future tax years for such income. 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Rupees Rupees 

ADVANCES AND PREPAYMENTS 

Advances to employees 19.1 1,247,380 1,225,500 

Prepaid levies 4,582,978 2,341,097 

As at end of the year 5,830,358 3,566,597 

19.1 These represent advances to employees against future salaries and post employment benefits in accordance with the Company 
policy. 

20 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS 

These represent investment in Atlas Money Market Fund managed by Atlas Asset Managemnet Limited. These, being held for 
trading, are required to be measured at fair value through profit or loss mandatorily. Accordingly, these have been classified as 
'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss'. Particulars of investments are as follows: 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Rupees Rupees 

Atlas Asset Management Fund 
321,548.5944 (30-Jun-24: 234,133.6311) units 
Market value per unit: Rs. 512.5755 (30-Jun-24: Rs. 510.5893) 

Cost of investment 
Changes in fair value 

163,883,761 119,266,220 

934,171 279,907 

164,817,932 119,546,127 

21 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

Cash in hand 694,339 727,404 

Bank balances 
Current accounts - local currency 9,488,490 8,596,441 

Depositlsaving accounts - local currency 21.1 7,503,547 8,047023 

17,686,376 17,370,868 
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21.1 

22 

These carry return at rates ranging from 9.5% to 19% (30-Jun-24: 19% to 20.50%) per annum. 

RENTAL INCOME 

This represents rental income from leasing out Company's investment property under operating lease arrangements. 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Rupees Rupees 

23 OTHER INCOME 

Gains on financial instruments 

Return on bank deposits 1,465,936 5,304,799 
Changes in fair value of short term investments 20 654,264 279,907 
Gain on disposal of short term investments 368,605 
Impairment reversal on long term investment 16 1,682,421 9,152,133 

Dividend income 18,331,915 15,607,317 

22,503,141 30,344,156 
Other income 

Changes in fair value of investment property 21,910,310 20,516,530 
Excess liabilities written back 37,986 

21,910,310 20,554,516 

44,413,451 50,898,672 

24 OPERATING EXPENSES 

Salaries and benefits 24.1 22,267,147 30,426,814 
Printing and stationery 194,176 583,268 
Communication 349,141 345,826 
Repair and maintenance 7,185,080 6,940,540 
Rent, rates and taxes 2,671,885 2,424,797 
Utilities 1,157,913 1,315,885 
Insurance 277,596 103,340 
Advertisement 55,900 81,000 
Vehicles running and maintenance 405,213 1,053,034 
Traveling and conveyance 23,010 192,530 
Legal and professional 182,700 1,935,035 
Fees and subscription 689,315 46,358 
Auditor's remuneration 24.2 565,000 565,000 
Entertainment 529,388 479,426 
Depreciation 14 884,417 464,848 
Miscellaneous 281,933 257,008 

37,719,814 47,214,709 

24.1 These include charge in respect of employees retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 1.69 million (30-Jun-24: Rs.1.40 million). 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Rupees Rupees 

24.2 Auditor's remuneration 

Annual statutory audit 450,000 450,000 
Limited scope review 50,000 50,000 
Review report on corporate governance 50,000 50.000 
Out of pocket expenses 15,000 15,000 

565,000 565,000 
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25 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

OTHER EXPENSES 

Rupees Rupees 

Workers' Welfare Fund 11.2 2,451,931 1,609,219 

Current tax asset written off 2,711,572 

Miscellaneous 5,324,709 

2,451,931 9,645,500 

26 FINANCE COSTS 

Bank charges 11,226 14017 

11,226 14,017 

27 PROVISION FOR LEVIES 

Levies under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 
for current year 27.1 
for prior year 

4,582,979 2,341,098 

4,582,979 2,341,098 

27.1 Levies under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 ['the Ordinance') have been recognized under section 150 of the Ordinance. 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

28 PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 

Current taxation 
current year 28.1 12,794,946 12,869,963 
prior year 73,862 195,822 

12,868,808 13,065,785 
Deferred taxation 

attributable to origination and reversal of temporary differences (342,457) 22,013,161 
attributable to changes in tax rates (6,998) 

181 (349,455) 22,013,161 

12,519,353 35078,946 

28.1 Provision for current tax has been made in accordance with section 18 and 37A (30-Jun-24: section 18 and 37A) of the Income Tax 
Ordinance 2001 [the Ordinance). 

28.2 Estimated liability payable with return of income to be filed under section 114 of the Ordinance, subject to adjustment of taxes and 
levies paid/deducted in advance and available refunds, comprises the following: 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

Statutory levies 27 4,582,979 2,341,098 
Current taxation 28 12,794,946 12,869,963 

17,377,925 15,211,061 

Sii 
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28.3 Reconciliation between average effective tax rate and applicable tax rate 

Unit 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Profit before taxation Rupees 87,933,412 73,799,051 

Provision for taxation Rupees 12,519,353 35,078,946 

Average effective tax rate 14.24 47.53 

Tax effects of: 
Adjustments for prior years (0.08) (0.27) 
Provision for deferred taxation 0.40 (29.83) 
Statutory levies (1.51) (1.55) 
Income chargebale to tax at different rates 6.11 6.13 
Income not chargeable to tax 8.81 10.38 
Inadmissible deductions (0.85) (3.89) 
Admissible deductions, losses and tax credits 1.89 0.49 

Applicable tax rate 29.00 29.00 

28.4 The income tax assessments of the Company up to and including tax year 2024 have been completed by the concerned income tax 
authorities or are deemed to have been so completed under the provisions of section 120 of the Ordinance. 

Unit 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

29 BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders Rupees 75,414,059 38,720,105 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding No. of shares 30,302,543 30,302,543 

Basic earnings per share Rupees 2.49 1.28 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

30 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 

Profit before income taxes 87,933,412 73,799,051 
Adjustments for non-cash and other items: 

Provision for employees retirement benefits 1,688,415 1,396,665 
Provision for levies 4,582,979 2,341,098 
Dividend income (18,331,915) (15,607,317) 
Share of (profit)/Ioss of associate (2,456,679) 3,538,833 
Current tax asset written off 5,324,709 
Excess liabilities written back (37,986) 
Changes in fair value of short term investments (654,264) (279,907) 
Gain on disposal of short term investments (368,605) 
Impairment reversal on long term investment (1,682,421) (9,152,133) 
Change in fair value of investment property (21,910,310) (20,516,530) 
Depreciation 884,417 464,848 

(38,248,383) (32,527,720) 

49,685,029 41,271,331 
Changes in working capital 

Advances and prepayments (21,880) (102,000) 
Lease rentals receivable 140,882 
Trade and other payables 654,707 2,294,719 

632,827 2,333,601 

Cash generated from operatIons 50,317,856 43,604,932 
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30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Rupees Rupees 

31 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and bank balances 21 17,686,376 17,370,868 

17,686,376 17,370,868 

32 CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Unclaimed Unclaimed 

divIdend dividend 

Rupees Rupees 

As at beginning of the year 2,239,099 2,252,941 

Dividend paid during the yaer (48,847) (13,842) 

As at end of the year 2,190,252 2,239,099 

33 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 

The details of the Company's related parties, with whom the Company had transactions during the year or has balances outstanding 
as at the reporting date, are as follows: 

Name of related party Nature and basis of relationship 
Kohinoor Power Company Limited Associate [Significant Influence] 
Red Communication Arts (Private) Limited Associated company [Common Directorship] 
Pak Elektron Limited Associated company [Common Directorship] 
M. Naseem Saigol Key Management Personnel [Director] 
Amber Haroon Saigol Close relative of KMP [Spouse of Director] 

The Company continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties entered into in the ordinary course of business 
are carried out on commercial terms and conditions which are equivalent to those prevailing in an arm's length transaction, except 
as stated otherwise in these financial statements. Detail of transactions and balances with related parties is as follows: 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Rupees Rupees 

33.1 Transactions with related parties 

Nature of relationship Nature of transactions 

Associated companies Advertisement expenses 55,900 81,000 
Rental income 1,921,632 1,746,936 

33.2 Balances with related parties 

Nature of relationship Nature of transactions 

Associated companies Advances from customers 340,946 309,944 
Key management personnel Borrowings 151,157,503 151,157,503 
Close relative of KMP Borrowings 202,525,000 202,525,000 

33.3 Further, a portion of investment property (land) owned by the Company is in the possession and use of Kohioor Power Company 
Limited, a related party without any compensation. 

34 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial assets and liabilities as at the reporting date are as follows: 

RSRIR 
- cde ddi4 



KOHINOOR INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 

34.1 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Financial assets 

Rupees Rupees 

Cash in hand 21 694,339 727,404 

Financial assets at amortized cost 
Long term deposits 17 166,376 166,376 

Lease rentals receivable 20,000 20,000 

Advances to employees 19 1,247,380 1,225.500 

Bank balances 21 9,488,490 8,596,441 

10,922,246 10,008,317 

Financial assets mandatorily classified as FVTPL 

Short term investments 20 164,817,932 119546,127 

176,434,517 130,281,848 

34.2 Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities at amortized cost 
Creditors 11 643,380 912,682 
Accrued liabilities 11 1,771,420 3,346,322 
Unclaimed dividend 2,190,252 2,239,099 

4,605,052 6,498,103 

35 FINANCIAL RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including currency risk, 
interest rate risk and price risk). These risks affect revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities of the Company, 

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of risk management framework. The Board of 
Directors has developed a risk policy that sets out fundamentals of risk management framework. The risk policy focuses on 
unpredictability of financial markets, the Company's exposure to risk of adverse effects thereof and objectives, policies and 
processes for measuring and managing such risks. The management team of the Company is responsible for administering and 
monitoring the financial and operational financial risk management throughout the Company in accordance with the risk 
management framework. 

The Company's exposure to financial risks, the way these risks affect the financial position and performance, and forecast 
transactions of the Company and the manner in which such risks are managed is as follows: 

35.1 Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company, if the counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its obligations. 

35.1.1 Credit risk management practices 

In order to minimize credit risk, the Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and limiting 
significant exposure to any single counterparty. The Company only transacts with counterparties that have reasonably high external 
credit ratings. Where an external rating is not available, the Company uses an internal credit risk grading mechanism. Particularly for 
customers, a dedicated team responsible for the determination of credit limits uses a credit scoring system to assess the potential 
as well as existing customers' credit quality and assigns or updates credit limits accordingly. The ageing profile of lease rentals 
receivable and individually significant balances, along with collection activities are reviewed on a regular basis. 

The Company reviews the recoverable amount of each financial asset on an individual basis at each reporting date to ensure that 
adequate loss allowance is made in accordance with the assessment of credit risk for each financial asset. 

The Company considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has reasonably high external credit rating or if an 
external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of performing'. Performing means that the counterparty has no past 
due amounts or otherwise there is no significant increase in credit risk if the amounts are past due in the normal course of business 
based on history with the counterparty. 
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In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares 
the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset at 
the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is 
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or 
effort. Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Company presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has 
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Company has 
reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise. This is usually the case with various customers of the 
Company where the Company has long standing business relationship with these customers and any amounts that are past due by 
more than 30 days in the normal course of business are considered 'performing' based on history with the customers. Therefore 
despite the foregoing, the Company considers some past due lease rentals receivable to have low credit risk where the customer 
has a good history of meeting its contractual cash flow obligations and is expected to maintain the same in future. 

The Company considers 'default' to have occurred when the financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is considered to be 
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset 
have occurred. 

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counter-party is in severe financial condition 
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. 

The Company's credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories: 

Category Description Basis for recognizing ECL  

Performing The counterparty has low credit risk Lease rentals receivable: Lifetime ECL 
Other assets: Twelve month ECL 

Doubtful Credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition Lifetime ECL 

  

in-default There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL 
Write-off There is no realistic prospect of recovery Amount is written-off 

35.1.2 Exposure to credit risk 

Credit risk principally arises from 'financial assets carried at amortized cost' held by the Company as at the reporting date. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk as at the reporting date is as follows: 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

Long term deposits 17 166,376 166,376 
Lease rentals receivable 20,000 20,000 
Advances to employees 19 1,247,380 1,225,500 
Bank balances 21 9,488,490 8,596,441 

10,922246 10,008,317 

35.t3 Credit quality and impairment 

Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference to external credit ratings, where available, or to internal credit risk grading. 
The credit quality of the Company's financial assets exposed to credit risk is as follows: 

30-Jun-25 
Credit rating! 12-month or Gross carrying Loss 
risk grading life-time ECL amount allowance 

Rupees Rupees 

Long term deposits 17 Performing Lifetime ECL 166,376 
Lease rentals receivable Performing 12-month ECL 20,000 
Advances to employees 19 Performing 12-month ECL 1,247,380 
Bank balances 21 AI-AI+ 12-month ECL 9,488,490 

10,922,246 
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30-Jun-24 

Credit rating I 12-month or Gross carrying Loss 

risk grading life-time ECL amount allowance 

Rupees Rupees 

Long term deposits 17 Performing Lifetime ECL 166,376 

Lease rentals receivable Performing 12-month ECL 20,000 

Advances to employees 19 Performing 12-month ECL 1,225,500 

Bank balances 21 Al -Al+ 12-month ECL 8,596,441 

10,008,317 

(a) Long term deposits 

Long term deposits comprise security deposits placed with various utility companies and regulatory authorities. These deposits 
are substantially perpetual in nature. Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these financial assets and accordingly 
no loss allowance has been made. 

(b) Lease rentals receivable 

This represents rent for June 2024 receivable from a customer the Company has a long standing relationship with. No credit 
risk has been associated with these financial assets and accordingly no loss allowance has been made. 

(c) Advances to employees 

Advances to employees have been given against future salaries and post-employment benefits. Therefore, no credit risk has 
been associated with these financial assets and accordingly no loss allowance has been made. 

(d) Bank balances 

The bankers of the Company have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by various independent credit rating agencies. 
Due to long standing business relationships with these counterparties and considering their strong financial standing, 
management does not expect any credit loss. Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these financial assets and 
accordingly no loss allowance has been made. 

35.1.4 Concentrations of credit risk 

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk. 

35.1.5 Collateral held 

The Company does not hold any collateral to secure its financial assets. 

35.2 Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. 

35.2.1 Liquidity risk management 

The Company's approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet 
its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the 
Company's reputation. The Company monitors cash flow requirements and produces cash flow projections for the short and long 
term. Typically, the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational cash flows, including 
servicing of financial obligations. This includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios, lease rentals receivable and creditors 
concentration both in terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customer, 

35.2.2 Exposure to liquidity risk 

The following presents the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment 

periods. The analysis have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on 
which the Company can be required to pay. 
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30-Jun-25 

Carrying Contractual One year One to More than 

amount cash flows or less five years five years 

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees 

Creditors 643,380 643,380 643380 

Accrued liabilities 1,771,420 1,771,420 1,771420 

Unclaimed dividend 2,190,252 2,190,252 2,190,252 

4,605,052 4,605,052 4,605,052 

30-Jun-24 

Carrying Contractual One year One to More than 

amount cash flows or less five years five years 

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees 

Creditors 912,682 912,682 912,682 

Accrued liabilities 3,346,322 3,346,322 3,346,322 

Unclaimed dividend 2,239,099 2,239,099 2,239,099 

6,498,103 6,498,103 6,498,103 

35.3 Market risk 

35.3.1 Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. Currency risk arises from transactions and resulting balances that are denominated in a currency other than 
functional currency. The Company is not exposed to currency risk. 

35.3,2 Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in interest 
rates. 

(a) Interest rate risk management 

The Company manages interest rate risk by analyzing its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Cash flow interest rate risk 
is managed by simulating various scenarios taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions and alternative 
financing. Based on these scenarios, the Company calculates impact on profit after taxation and equity of defined interest rate 
shift, mostly 100 basis points. 

(b) Interest bearing financial instruments 

The effective interest rates for interest bearing financial instruments are mentioned in relevant notes to the financial statements. 
The Company's interest bearing financial instruments as at the reporting date are as follows: 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

Fixed rate instruments 

Variable rate instruments 

Financial assets 7,503,547 8,047,023 
Financial liabilities 

(c) Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments 

The Company does not account for its fixed rate instruments at fair value 

(d) Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates as at the reporting date would have increased profit for the year and equity by 
Rs. 75,035 (30-Jun-24: Rs. 80,470). A decrease of 100 basis points wound have had an equal but opposite effect on profit for 
the year. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign exchange rates, remain constant and ignores the 
impact, if any, on provision for taxation for the year. 
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35.3.3 Other price risk 

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices, other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk, whether those changes are caused by factors specific 
to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments. The Company is exposed to 
price risk in respect of its investments in mutual funds. 

(a) Equity price risk management 

The Company manages equity price risk by investing in low to medium risk securities portfolio to reduce the risk of loss from 
volatility in equity prices. 

(b) Sensitivity analysis 

A one percent appreciation in prices of listed equity securities as at reporting date would have increased equity as at the 
reporting date by Rs 1.648 million (30-Jun-24: 1.195 million). A one percent diminution in prices of equity securities and mutual 
fund units as at the reporting date would have had equal but opposite effect on equity and profit for the year. The analysis 
assumes that all other variables remain constant and ignores the impact, if any, on provision for taxation for the year. 

36 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS, AND EXECUTIVES 

The aggregate amount charged to profit or loss in respect of chief executive, directors and executives on account of managerial 
remuneration, allowances and perquisites, post employment benefits and the number of such directors and executives is as follows: 

30-Jun-25 
Chief Executive Directors Executives 

Rupees Rupees Rupees 

Managerial remuneration 9,271,713 
Post employment benefits 772,643 

10,044,356 

Number of persons 3 

30-J un-24 
Chief Executive Directors Executives 

Rupees Rupees Rupees 

Managerial remuneration 8,085,559 
Post employment benefits 673,797 

8,759,356 

Number of persons 3 

37 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The objectives of the Company, while managing capital are to ensure that it continues to meet the going concern assumption, 
enhance shareholders' wealth and meet stakeholders' expectations. The Company's objective is to ensure its sustainable growth viz. 
maintaining optimal capital structure, keeping its finance cost low, exercising option of issuing right shares or, where possible, 
repurchasing shares, selling surplus property, plant and equipment without affecting the optimal production and operating level and 
regulating dividend payout. The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 

38 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

The Company measures some of its assets at fair value. Fair value measurements are classified using a fair value hierarchy that 
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured 
at fair value and the information about how the fair values of these financial instruments are determined are as follows: 

38.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value 

38.1.1 Recurring fair value measurements 

Nature of asset Hierarchy Valuation techniques/Key 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Rupees Rupees 

Investments in mutual funds Level 1 Quoted prices in an active 164,817,932 119,546,127 
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38.1.2 Non-recurring fair value measurements 

There are no non-recurring fair value measurements of financial instruments as at the reporting date. 

38.1.3 Financial instruments not measured at fair value 

The management considers the carrying amount of all financial instruments not measured at fair value to approximate their carrying 
values. 

38.2 Assets and liabilities other than financial Instruments 

38.2.1 Recurring fair value measurements 

For recurring fair value measurements, the fair value hierarchy and information about how the fair values are determined is as 
follows: 

Assetslliabilities Hierarchy Valuation technique and key inputs 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Rupees Rupees 

Land Level 2 Land is valued using market comparable approach 787,440,000 772,000,000 
that reflects recent transaction prices for similar 
properties. Significant inputs include estimated 
purchase price, including non-refundable purchase 
taxes and other costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition. 

Buildings Level 2 Building is valued using cost approach that reflects 135,864,760 129,394,450 
the cost to the market participants to construct 
assets of comparable utility and age, adjusted for 
obsolescence and depreciation. Significant inputs 
include estimated construction costs and other 
ancillary expenditure. 

38.2.2 Non-recurring fair value measurements 

There are no non-recurring fair value measurements of assets and liabilities other than financial instruments as at the reporting date. 

39 SEGMENT REPORTING 

39.1 The Company is a single reportable segment. 

39.2 All non-current assets of the Company are situated in Pakistan. 

39.3 All revenue of the Company have originated from Pakistan. 

39.4 Revenue derived from one (30-Jun-24: one) individual significant external customers, to whom sales in excess of 10% of the 
Company's total sales were made during the year, amounts to Rs. 83.668 million. (30-Jun-24: Rs. 83.908 million). 

40 MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASE 

The Company has leased out investment property under operating lease arrangements. Amounts of minimum lease payments 
receivable under the lease agreements are as follows: 

 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

- not later than one year 
- later than one year but not later than five years 

Rupees Rupees 

43,197,536 85,589,228 
- 43,197,536 

43,197,536 128,786,764 
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Total number of employees 18 20 
Average number of employees 19 19 

RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS AND IMPAIRMENT 

As at the reporting date, recoverable amounts of all assets/cash generating units are equal to or exceed their carrying amounts, 
unless stated otherwise in these financial statements. 

43 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 06 October 2025 has proposed dividend on ordinary shares at Rs. 0.75 per ordinary 
share of Rs. 10 each. The proposed dividend is subject to approval of the Company's shareholders in the forthcoming annual 
general meeting and thus has not been included as a liability in the financial statements. 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Rupees Rupees 

44 RECLASSIFICATIONS 

The following have been reclassified for better presentation. 

Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 
Reclassified from Provision for levies > Workers' Welfare Fund 
Reclassified to Other expenses> Workers' Welfare Fund 

Workers' Profit Participation Fund payable 
Reclassified from Trade and other payables > Levies payable>.. 

> Workers' Profit Participation Fund 
Reclassified to Trade and other payables> Workers' Profit Participation Fund 

Workers' Welfare Fund payable 

Reclassified from Trade and other payab!es >Levies payable>.. 
> Workers' Welfare Fund 

Reclassified to Trade and other payables> Workers' Welfare Fund 

45 GENERAL 

2,451,931 1,609,219 

371,704 371,704 

6,100,498 3,648,567 

Comparative figures have been rearranged and reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of comparison. However, there were 
no significant reclassifications during the year. 

     

      

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

  

DIRECTOR Q CEF Fl. ANCIAL OFFICER 
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Form of Proxy 
76th Annual General Meeting 
 

LEDGER FOLIO                      SHARES HELD 

 

 

 

I / We _____________________________________________________________________________ 

of ________________________________________________________________________________ 

hereby appoint ______________________________________________________________________ 

of ________________________________________________________________________________ 

(or failing him)  ___________________________________________________of________________ 

(being a member of the Company) as my / or proxy to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf 

at the 76th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, October 28, 2025 at 

06-Egerton Road, Opposite LDA Plaza, Lahore at 11:00 A.M. and at every adjournment thereof, if any. 

 

A witness my / our hand (s) this ______day of October 2025. 

 
Signed by the said 

 

_________________ 
 

Witnesses: 
 

1) Name _________________________ 2)  Name _________________________ 

 Address _______________________   Address _______________________ 

 ______________________________   ______________________________ 

 CNIC No.  _____________________   CNIC No.  _____________________ 
 

Notes: 
 

1.  A member entitled to attend and vote at this Meeting may appoint proxy. Proxies in order to be 

effective, must be received at 10-G, Mushtaq Ahmed Gurmani Road, Gulberg-II, Lahore, the 

Registered Office of the Company not later than forty-eight hours before the time of holding the 

meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed. 
 

2.  For CDC Account Holders/ Corporate Entities in addition to the above the following requirements 

have to be met. 
 

(i) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the Beneficial Owners and the Proxy shall be 

provided with the proxy form. 
 

(ii) In came of a Corporate entity, the Board of Directors' Resolution / Power of Attorney with 

specimen signatures shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier along with 

proxy form to the Company). 
 

(ii) The Proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting. 

 

REVENUE  

   STAMP 
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
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